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He admitted that he had heard much later that the
troops sent by China north were stopped at Paoting, where they
were held  voluritarily by the Chinese authorities., He did not
know at the time whether the act was voluntary or for some other
reason. He would say that Paoting was a little more than one
hundred miles from Peiping.

20,734 The witness stated that General TADA replaced IMAL
as Vice Chief of otaff. In view of his statement that the de-
cision to capture Nanking was made on December 1, when he was
asked whether it was not a fact that TADA had prepared the
plans for Nanking's capture during the battle of Shanghail,
the witness stated he was not familiar with the preparations
within the General Staff, but the decision to capture Nanking
was taken the 1st of December,

ihen asked whether TADA had not drawn the plans for
operations against Hankow in June or July 1938, the witness
stated he did not know when the plans were first begun, but he
did know that the decision to take Hankow was made the early
part of December 1938,

b RDIKECT LXAMINATION by kr. Brooks,
‘ Counsel for LINAMI

20,737 vhen asked whether once materials had been supplied
and agreed upon, was the use of these materials and operations
conducted thereunder solely in the hands of the General staff,
the witness stated that materials provided in accordance with
operational plans were not supplied to the general Staff. They
were in the hands of the War kinistry, which delivers them to
the units directly. .

When the General Staff wishes to change operational

20,738 plans, it would have O consult the War linistry, % since

these materials must be transported from this place or that

and produced to the various units, and the function of trans-
20,740 portation rests with the War linistry. % The var linistry

had no authority to give orders stopping or changing military

operations in the field. The War kinistry could limit the use

of materials. There were no regulations or stipulations regard-

ing the extent of such limitations.

R,
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20,743

When asked after Imperial sanction for an operation
was given whether the War Minister could withhold further sup=
plies, ¥ the witness stated that once an order for operations
had been given and the operation begun, the War Ministry must
authorize the use of such material to attain the object of the
operations. shen an operational order is given the Chief of
S5taff customarily consults the iar Vinistry and the War Iinis-
try, taking various factors of material into consideration,
sither gives his approval or not, when consulted.

REDIRACT EXAMINATION by Mr, Banno,
Counsel for ITAGAKI

The witness stated that in the preparation of opera=
tional plans the war Ministry has something to do with it. ¥
Definite decision is made at the time when the Chief of Staff
and the war Ministry have agreed and are seeking to obtain
Imperial sanction. It 1s nost clear when the Inperial sanction
has been granted.




e

1 ! . o

\ 23 April 1947

MEMORANDUM TO: Mr, Nelson Sutton

FROM: Mr, J, F, English b

An examination of the deposition of\TANAKA, Shinichi
shows that certain matters therein might referT
of the Cabinet, Liaison Meetings or Flve Minlsters Confer-
ences, These matters occurred between July 8 and July 27,
19373 the middle of August, 19373 December 1, 1937 and some
date, not stated, in September, 1938.

An examination of the record shows that there are 1n
evidence references to two Cabinet meetings as being held in

1937 - 11 July and 22 October,

Exhibit 260 refers to the meeting of 11 July 1937. It
is the cross-examination of CHING TEH-CHUN during which he
stated that the Japanese Cabinet under KONOYE on 11 July
1937 passed a resolution to send a biggér Army to North
China, (2455) Th s agrees with TANAKA's statement on page

11-E,

Exhibit 239 refers to a Cabinet meeting of 22 October
1937 (2960), At this meeting the Cabinet decided to form a
more powerful naticnal politlcal company to establish and
develop heavy industry in Manchukuo. The Affldavit of TANAKA
makes no reference to such a matter,

-

No exhibit relating to a Privy Council meeting refers to
any matter discussed in TANAKA's Affidavit during 1937 or 1938,

TANAKA's Affidavit is confined to happenings within the
years 1937 and 1938, The record shows that there was a Four
Vinisters Conference held on 16 April 1937 (Ex, 219, Record p.

4 2748) and a Five Ministers Conference on 20 February 1937
(Ex, 2181 Record p., 2745-2747), TANAKA's Affidavit refers to

Five linisters Conference of 20 July 1937.

Conclusion: Consequently, there is in evidence no record
of any meéting or conference mentioned by TANAKA in this

Affidavit,
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tions to the Introduction of the Affidavit

Objec

I. In General

(a) The affidavit is argumentative.

(b) The witness purpor
of ficial documents and tO give information

which he secure
the documents themse
and he does hot &
the documents OT the inability of +the defense
to produce them.

II. Specific

(a) In Sectlon III, 1, the witness purports 1o
issued by the General

quote an e xplanatlion
Staff. This 1s objectionable on two grounds,-

t to introduce &

(1) It is an a ttemp
plying with the

document without com
usual rTules, and

The official.statement should Dbe
produced OT the inability to pTo=

duce it accounted for.

(2)

the witness gives as the
wphis I know from

the nature of the

In Section IV, 1,
source of his information,

documents,” without giving
documents oOTr giving any reasons why the docu-
ments should not be produced e The last TWO
sentences of this sub-sectlon purport tO be

third-hand hearsay concerning the establish-
ment of the policy of non-enlargement by the

Imperial Government.
i

In Section IV, 2, the witness recites, "=« - °
which I know & ‘W This is objec=

tionable for the reasons T €C

above. 1n the b
the witness purports to

sub-section (page 8),
quote a " judgment of the situation” adopted

he had second-hand informatione. T
to the additional objection.set out in iten

1T (a) aboVes

by the General Staff Headquarters, as to which
his is subject
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Page 2.

(d)

(e)

(£)

(g)

In Section IV, pages 8 and 9, the witness ;
purports to summarize an official statement A
of the Government issued 1l July. This is /Y
objectionable on the two grounds set out in AR
item II (a) above and on the additional ground ~+ .
that it is doubtless the same statement as ol &
already in evidence as Exhibit No. 260, R

in the Prosecution's case.

In Section V, page 9, the witness testifies

to the decision of a Cabinet conference on
second-hand information without complying with
the rule on the production of the record or
accounting for the inability of the Defense to
produce it. The same objection applies to the
so-called "Policy for the settlement of the
North China Incident" (Pages 9 and 10), adopted
by the Governing Board of the General Staff and
of the War Kinistry. This applies to the last
paragraph on page 9 and the first paragraph on
page 106

Section VI, A, seeks to introduce third-hand
evidence o% the action taken at a Cabinet mecting.

In Section VI, E, page 11, the witness purports
to give the decision of a Cazbinet meeting which
is objectionable for the reasons above stated.

' In Section VI, F, the witness recites the in-

formation contained in "a report received from
a higher official."”
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Additional Questions for Cross Examination
) tness TANAKA. Shinieh |

—

De

6,

7e

9

10,

11,

Questions:

1, Witness, in what department of the War Ministry and
in what capacity did you work in 1937%

2. VWhat were your duties?

3. Was it not one of your functions to receive information
about the Soviet Union from the Japanese General Staff,
or did you hapren to hear about it from some one elss?

L. What was the General Staff information? Wasn't it

assumptions of the Special Service Department of the
General Stafrfr?

Do you know exactly upon what specific sources was the
General Staff information based in 19377

If you are not aware of the original sources of the
information about the Soviet Forces in the Far East,
how can you then state in your affidavit without any
reservations that the information is hypothetical?

Don't you have any doubts that the information about
the amed forces of the Soviet Union 1= exaggerated
and that there 1s some doubt as to its c_redibility?

You stated in your affidavit that the Soviet Union had
10 cavalry divi sions and some mechanized and airforce
units stationed in the Mongolian People's Republic.

Is this what you meant to say?

If the witness says that those are Mongolian cavalry div-
isions, he should be asked: Why then do you refer to
facts concerning other states and attribute tham to

the Soviet Union without making any reservations?

If the witness says there were 10 cavalry divisions,
he should be asked: Do you yourself believe such
absurd information which has not the slightest resemb-
lance to the description of the true state of affairs?

In your affidavit you refer to the information concern-
ing the Soviet forces in the Far Rast in 1937, ineluding
your conjectures and assumptions as to the forges of the




Page 2

(Ac(lditio:ﬁl Questions fa Cross ixsmination of Witness TANAKA
contd

‘ Siperian Militery District at a distance of 5000«6000
Klm, from the Primorje, Is it not because Novosibirsk
and Western Siberia were objectives of Japan's plans
of aggression?

12, In the English verison of your affidavit it is stated
t that the Soviet Union had L5 cavelry divisions in the Far-
rastern direction. "Aren't you surprised at such confusing
strength? And was it actually like that?

correction: I draw the attention of the Tribunal to

the fact that in the English version of the affidavit of
TANAKA, Shinichi, Defense NDocument No. 925, on top of
page 4, line 3, it 1 stated that the Soviet Union had

L5 cavalry divisions in the Far-Bastern direction; where-
as in the Japanese version of the affidavit only 43
cavalry division are mentioned, This circumstance has
to be clarified and a respective sorrection made in the

affidavit.

13. JIs your statement correct that the actions of the Soviet
Tnion having been teken into account, Japan's operations
in China would bave been jeopardized and considered undesir-

able?

14, Yowever, didn't the Japanese High Command start waging war
in China in 1937 because 14 held the belief, in spite of
what you say, thet there was no raal threat on the part of

- the Soviet Union and that 1% was necessary to secure a
reiiahlo war for an eventual attack against the Sovlet
Tnion?

15, Don't you think that, {f the information you have given,
concerning such large forces of the Soviet Tnion in the
Par Fast in 1937 were true, the Japanese High Command
would never have had the war with China started in the

sgme year?




PERTINENT INFORMATION

RE: TANAKA, Shinichi
Defoe Doce 925

IFS DOC 1831
-« Not yet introduced
-- No officiel English translation ready

Chart of Mobilized Units during the China Incident, from July 1937
to Dec, 1940, by the 3rd Section, #rmy General Staff,

The first item in the Chart is substantially as follows,

' The order,, Armyel=lNosbw-=dated 15 July 1937e-=, Was given to mobilize
the China Garrison Force, the Headquarters of Air Corps, and the Head~-

quarters of another Headquarters of Arix$dxrmx Air Corps (name not quite
clear)-

The China Garrison Force would be formed of the following, lst

Infantry, 2nd Infantry, 3rd Infantry, Tank Battalion. Cavarly Battlion,

Artillery Battalion, Eaginering Battalion, to be formed into the 27th
Division,

This checks with the information ccntained in the CHINBSE YEAR BOOK,
Pe 157, which said according to the report of REUTER, War Office in To}qro
announced the troops would be dispatched from Jepan proper.
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We should clear up ambiguities as to what department he was
serving in, probably due to transletion. I think it should be Military
Affairs Section of Military Affairs Bureau, War Ministrye

He refers in terms to documents not produced or accounted fore.
on Page 6, para IV 1 and page 25 - end of paragraph 7e

Further on pages L, 8, 10, 17, 20 (first para), 23 (last para)
there are "instructions reports &c.," mostly at cnsiderable length
purporting to be verbatim, which must probably have been docunents
which alternatively it is difficult to believe he can remembers

The Affidavit is full of hearsay about mavters which he could
notv possibly know himself, most of which are in themselves hearsay by his
alleged but usually unnamed informents with no prebative value as to the
truth of the original reparts themselvess.

On pages 8=9 no. IV, he says that the published decision of July
11th to send forces to North Chipna fram Japan was cancelled or postponed
on the afternoon of the same day, but that part of the Ewantung and Chosen
Armies were sent there and on page 12, para £, it was not until 27%th July
that it was decided to mobilise and despatch divisions from hame, but
on page 13, para 8 he says that I, divisions were mobilised and despatched
in July, 7 in August and 4 in September and October and on page 16, para

IX he speaks of the expenditure of Expeditionary forces sent to Korea and

Manchuria on July 1lth 1937, apparently indicating that forces sent fram

those places to North China bn that date were replaced by new forces from

/

Japane
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PERTINENT INFORMATION l/
REs Tﬁ sunun/
TqE CHINESE YEAR BOOK, 1938-39, prepared from Official Sources by the
Counsil of International Affeirs, Chungking.

I¢ nedessary, this book can be imtroduced into evidence, OR the basis
of being an official document, the stme status as US Government publications.

Tye following information is obtained from the book, wherein the
pertinent parts have beem marked in red pensil.

page 156, right eolumn, near ihe bottom
on July l2th, the Chinese Yoreign Mimister proposed to the

Japanese mutual cessation of military movem-nts. But no reply
wes ever received fram the Japanes®.

Page 155, right column, upper pars of the page

on Fuly 15%h, Japanese Army at Fengtai publicly snnounced that
4+ wanted twoex the expulsionnof the 20th Army. Yresh demands were
also reported, Chinese National Government began bnﬂstroopl
northward. But on July 17th, at the request of Gemeral “ung, the
weder of the Hopei-Ohahar, who was negotiating with the Japenese,

the troops sent were halted at Paoting.

Page 159, right columm, bottom, to Pege 156, left
Now the Jepanese could mo longer ignore the
apd onl7th, a ‘virtusl ultimatm® was presented to

s prompt and adegquete reply.

Page ].:,Ge right eolumn, middle, 0 Page 157, left eolummn, middle

The “hinese gave & reply on the 19%h, to the effesct that the
local settlement must receive the sapction from the Ratioml
Govermment. It again a simultemsous cessation of roop

movements and the troops of boih sides should reiurn to the |
It also mede it eclear that China would SmNEK 8gree to

all means of setilemat, through mormal diplcmatic channels .

However, there was no further communication from the japanese., In fael,
et hesd, the witness could well be

was a fact th&t Japanese pationals residing in wrious
parts of central Chins ware ordered to go home immietielely, and Japanese
ships were seat to fetch them houee
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(N. B.

In sub-parargaph 2 he relates munitions problem, that it was
difficult to mobilize and dispatch 15 divisions and maintein operations
st that time, with only eight months' stock on hand. That continuous
supply would be impogsible and leave none for self-defense.

Part IV of the affidavit: That the Incident was not planned. Far. 1,
that on July 8, 1937 the army adopted policy of non-enlargement and non-
exercige of military strength, which policy the government adopted along
with measures for gelf-preservation.

In sub-paragraph 2, he relates that on July 9 General Staff instructed
Army to negotiate with Hopei-Chahar; that reports indicated compliance.

The complience is a conclusion).

Information received show Chinese send additional forces to Honan
Province, strengthening Northern forces, and repeating illegal firing.

To protect Japanese residents it was desired to dispatch a minimm
force to the Peking-Tientsin area.

That the government made a statement July 1l explaining the sending
of troops; in effect--that on assurances of negotiations the prepareations
will be reserved. Orders given sending partes of Kwantung and Chosen
armies.

Part V. On information, affisnt gives outoome of Cabinet conference.

Not the best evidence).

General Staff decided on settlement olici July 15th, WH; to
avoid expending Incident to war, to accep settlement terms of lith,

Part Vi. (A) Mobilization and dispatch not thought necessary at
beginning of Incident.

(B) Later, considering danger to residents, increased
8hinese preparations and attacks, brought Government announcement of
dispatching of troops July llth.

(@) (D) Settlement reached July llth and mobilization
discontinued.

(E) Due to further concentration of Chinese,Army, delays
in withdrawal, Cgbinet decided on mobilization by July 19th, but China
again gave promise of settlement so 1t was postponed until the 22nd.

-2~




(N. B.
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(F) After Lengfeng and Kwangan Gate Incident of July 25th
and 26th, government decided on 27th to mobilize and dispatch the

armies at home, the purpose being to protect nationals, communications
and maintain defensge.

(6) General Headquarters made no plans for further or future
mobilization and took passive attitude.

Conclusion)

(H) Higher officers adopted policy of further mobiligation.
After the Shanghai incident, 2 divisions were sent, also one to protect

the residents of Tsintao. By October 1937 a total of 37 divisions had
been sent.

(I) By the time of the HANKAO and Canton operations, 23
divisions were in China including some organized in that zone.

Part VII. Regarding Nanking, Hsu-Chow, Kwantung and Hankow:

1. Though previously not intended, on December 1, 1937, deciding
to terminate the incident, orders were given to capture Nanking.

2. In May 1938 the War Minister and Vice-Chief of General Staff
agreed on operations at Hsu-Chow, to secure contact betwesen North
and South divisions. Disggreement had existed due to policy of non-
expansion. *

3. Decision made in September 1938 for operations at Hankow
and Ewantung.

4. The Army budget passed by the 38th Diet hed not anticipated
these operations, which caused inconveniences.

Should be stricken ag conclueion).

Part VIII. Regarding budget. In October 1937 prospects were

entertained in Tokyo of sitive operation t o
had 16 divisione in China and 2 hoPJ tg. r u.o= %: {o}“.ﬂfzugw?_n

Spring of 1938. This was approved both by the department and the

outposts. The budget was fixed accordingly, but the expected settle-
ment did not materialize and after 1938 operations we had an enormous
deficiency in the budget.
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Part IX. Regarding budget preparations. As principal plans
of War Minister for troops in Manchuria and Korea in July 37, which

were to stay & months, negotiations with Finance Minister resulted
in budget for only 2 months which Diet approved in July 1937.

In Beptember 1937 an additional 4 months budget was approved,
thus budgets made little by little indicated how the'38 budget was
underestimated.

Part X. Regarding non-sggravation policy.

1l. that the foregoing statements show efforts toward non-aggra-
vation.

2. All commenders in North China were instructed of this policy.
No troope were carried on the Peking-Tientsin railway. Every Peking
castle gate was guarded by Chinese and 6,000 Japanese were guarded by
only 2 of our platoons. Many inconveniences were suffered to prevent
agegravation.

3. The commander in Central China reported to affiant (on liaison
work) that Central command gave out no information regarding general

operation plan, but only the purpose and time of each operation. This

was done to follow localization policy.

4. In the Pingtsin Area during July 1937, tried to localize Lafang
and Kwangen Gate Incidents. Chinese ingincerity in their agreements
and war-like actions made it necessary to mobilize the divisions at home.

On July 26th the General Staff gave notice that mobilization should
not be delayed. War Minister recognized it on July 27th. On the 29th
the government ordered mobilization of 3 home divisions, but to ocontinue
localization and settlement policy, also to avoid need of requiring
more troops and cautioned to do no damage to third Powers personnel.

That future action in Pingtsin area would be purely defensive
according to government information.

Affiant learned from a document that the General Staff approved
action against the Chinese 29th Army by limiting the shooting area.

5. Affiant told by Chief Military Affairs Bureay of action taken
by the Five Ministers' meeting July 20, announcing policy to improve
the situation and satiefy Western Powers of their high principle and
peaceful aims. On page 22 affiant "also heard" that an opinion existed
among the General Staff that forces could be moved back and that an

interview between Konoye and Chiang Kai-ghek be arranged for a settlement.

-
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Affient states thies was not realized.

(N. B. Statements such as the last one mentioned giving opinions of other
people should be stricken).

8., Circumstances following Oyama Incident at Shanghai!

That affiant received a Navy report regarding possible need of dis-
patching troops to Shanghai. Government authorities said to have opinion

that due to thie Incident, measures might be needed to protect residents.

On August 165th 2 divisions were ordered dispatched but "not as a
purely military operation®.

That Tsingtao residents might need protection. That about
August 15th the General Staff concluded that China had decided on an

ell-out war. That Chiang EKai-ghek was appointed Supreme Command er
and war gzones created and general mobiligzation ordered.

Affiant received notice about Angust 16 of a Cabinet decision:
That localization is very difficult in China which indicates a long

war although efforts should be made to restrict it in time and area.

That less than 2 divisions were dispatched temporarily; 5 battallions
later and finally B more divisions from North China. That 3 divisions

wvere landed at Hangchow and one at Paimaokiang. '

That the delay in occupying Shanghai, plus the numerical shortage
of forces and materials, caused the battle to last 3 months, according

to the Commanding General's statement to affiant.

On page 25 affiant states that the Shanghai Expeditionary Force
was later made headquarters of the Central China Expeditionary Force,

with the aim of bringing about a settlement of the Incident.

Affiant comments having seen documenta that the forces were in-
structed to move West beyond Wusih and Fuchow.

8, Affient states that by Ordinance Imperial Headquarters was
established in Tokyo and the munitions mobilization program begen in
November 1937. That in March 1938 the general mobilization law was

promulgated, and applied in May for the China Incident.

N eveaciy
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I. I, TANAKA, Shinich, formerly a lieutenant-general, live
at No. 2,042, Nizawa-mura kabseko, Mie District, Mie Fre-

fecture.

-

I occupied the post of the chief of the Military Affair.
w

Section, War Service Bureau, War Ministry, from Merch of 1937

o —— o

to February of 1939, and had charge of the affairs concerning

ot W i

fhe dréénization, equipment, budget, mobilization and rein-
forcement of our forces, under the command of the director of

the bureau,

It was about the middle of karch, 1937, that I srrived
at my post. VYhen I paid a visit of courtesy to Minister of
War SUGIVAMA, he pointed out that the time had come to try
strenuously tb avoid all foreign troubles and devote our-

selves to the completion of national defence; thet the Army

would try to modernize its armaments and particularly to
improve and complete its war materials; and that the NMilitary
Affairs Section should make a snecial effort to improve the

organization and equipment of our forces.

II. As to whether or not our Japancse Army had a plan of
operations against China before the outbreak of the China In-
cident, the General Staff Headquarters of the Japanese Army
had no plan of operations for the war with China before the
outbreak of the China Incident. While I was engaged in the
affairs concerning the organization, reinforccment and mobi-
li~ation of our forces; as the Chief of the Military Affairs
Section, War Service Pureau, War Ninistry, I never received

any report or information concerning the mobilization and

operational rreperation necessary for any plan of operations
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agaihst China, either from the General Staff oOT from the
superior authorities. This means that the General Staffl
had ho preparatory plan of this kind at that time. For the
plan of operations as well as that of mobilization and
operational preparation WETe just in 1its charge, but the
realization of such plans was necessarily eccompénied by
the strength, munitions and expenditure. The: - fore they
could not be realized without the approval and coopcration
of the War Ministry, and the Chief of vilitary Affairs Sec-
tion would have had TO be informed of the business concerning
such plans, all the mOTE so because 1 arrived at my post in

March -- at the end of the fiscal yeur. .

11T, As to whether or not the Japancse #rmy was then SO

situated as to be able to atsempt Chinese opecrations 1in

China, in view of the strength and munitional materials of
the Japanese Army ab that time, it would have been almost

impossible TO attempt operations in China.

P In 1937, when the China Lncident broke out, Japen had
only & peace-time strength of 17 jivisions and & war-time

one of 30 divisions. In the judgment of the General Staff

as well as of the War Miniéter; as later referred to in

this affidavit, it was very dangerous for the Army toO operete
in China with the fighting strength availablc at the tige

in view of the fact that China had a forcc 20;000,000 strong
(200 divisionsj, and a vast/ézqgell as the social idiosyn-
oracies of the Chinese people.

In addition, we had to be greatly concerned in the

‘Hyussian military preparations in the Far Last. According
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to the information received by the General Staff as to the
Russian preparations for war with Janan, she had a standing
peacc-time strength of 28 sniper divisions, 45 cavalry divi:_
sions, 6 mechanized brigades and 1,900 aircgg%ﬁ”for-fhe f;r
EEEE: including the Siberian Nilitary District; together with
a peac§-time force of 10 cavalry divisions and some mechanil-
zed units and air units for Outer Mongolia. The minimum war-
timc strength that she could use against Japan amountcd to

3L o 50 divisions, of which mobilization, conccntration and
.feinforccméﬁt were to be sufficiently secured, It was con-
cluded, therefore, that it would be dangerous and inadvisablc
to carry out operations in China under such circumstances,
taking into consideration the movements of the Soviet Union.
In this connection, after the “arcoc Polo Bridge Incident
broke out in July, 1937; the General Staff gave the follow-
ing explanation:

"Considering the Chinese situation, the present
incident is liable to turn into a head-on, protracted
war between Japan and China. If s0, we could use only
11 divisions in these Chinese operations, or, adding
the reserve corps of the Army, 15 divisions in total.
But, if we should use half our war-time strength,
totalling 30 divisions on the plan of mobilization,
in the Chinese Aren for & long time, then we are sure
to meet. with a serious crisis from the viewpoint of
national defence. So it is necessary to take every
possible measure for the immediate settlement of the

incident."

As I was present when this explanation was made, I

know that the War Minister was 1in entire accordancec with

- L -

T
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the explanation,

problem of military strength.

According to the kobilization Plans Bureau of the War
Ministry, having charge of the production ang maintenance
of munitions 1t was very difficult to mobilize andgd dispatch
about 15 divisions ang €ven to maintain operations in the
incident at the time, in view of our conditions of produc-

tion end supply of munitions. In 1937, our Army had only

an elght months' stock of ammunition for fifteen divisions.,

———
..-l-'—'-‘ p S — et ——

AEJEB the ability of ﬁﬁnitions mobilization, we could barely
hope to meet the operational consumption of 15 reinforced
divisions in about eight or nine months after the mobiliza-
tion was commenced, and a continuous supply of special ma-

terials was impossible, As regards the arms, supposing

that we were able to use all the arms we had in stock angd °
bring our munition mobilization to a maximum, it would have
been difficult to meet the opcrational consumption of 15
divisions; end this was especially the case with srecial

materials. Therefore, if we should g0 to a protracted war

strained under such circumstences, we were sure to be at a

loss what to do for self-defence, . Generally speaking, with

our anticipated munitions mobilization for 1937, and guaran-

teed a supply of 70 per cent of munitions, including arms and

1
'
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for the estimated war~time strength of 30 divi-

ammunitions,
able to mobilize

sions for the fiscel year, W€ planned to be

However, far more materials were exnected to be

g0 we admitted that it was

commenced.

consumed in the China Incident,

extremely difficult to meintain omerations with 15 divisions.

iy, Deata indicating that the incident was not planned from

the Javanese point of view.

In addition to the date in the above II and TIT, I wish

to refer to the Tollowliug:

1% Letablishment of non-enlargement and non-erercise of

military strength. On July 8, when the Army was informed

of the clash at the Marco Polo Bridge early in the morning,

it immediately determined the general policy of non-enlarge-

ment of the incident as well as non-exercise of military

the Chief of the gtaff of the Army

strength, and informed
ront to that effect through the Vice-Chief of the

at the f

Thie I know from decuments. About July 8

tabiished the policy of

General Staff.

o Gy hne Imperial Government €3

non-enlargement, desiring for the smooth settlement of the
incident by reconcideration on the part of China, and simul-

t:neously decided to take Droper measures for self-preserva-

tion, according Uo the circumstances, though it was tOO

carly to send mOTre€ forces at that time. This 1 neard from

Lieutenant General USHIROKU, Director of the War Service

d thereof in the Bureau-directors

Bureau who was informe

Council by!the'War Minister.

y settlement at the front, On July 9,

e army at the front to nego- .

e Effort for speed
the General Staff instructed th

Sl =
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tiate with the Hupei-Chahar authorities for the settlement 3

of the Marco Polo Bridge Incident, which I know from docu- |
N .
ments, The gist was to avoid reference to politicel 1issues

e
under such circumstances, and to obtain the aponrovel of the !

Hupei-Chahar Political Committee and fulfil as soon as -poss-

~ible our demands, such as the susvension of stationing the

‘ Chinese forces on the left bank near the Marco Polo Bridge,

1ts necessary guarantee, and the punishment and apology 6Of

;]

those persons directly responsible,

- According to the reports which I received from the army

P
at the front, our occupation forces in China prohibited

L

promptly any military movement, following the policy of non-

enlargement of the incident and its speedy settlement at the
front, In order to save the situation, Major-General MATSUIL,

Daikuro, Chief of the Peiping Special Service Agency, was

negotiating with the Chinese military euthorities, and it

seemed that an agreement would be reached in conformity to

the above-mentioned policy of neéotiation with HZupei-Chehar,

waevér, according to the information received by the

- — T —

General Staff, the Chinese authoriﬁlés+5id5red four divisions

of her central army near Suchow to march for the frontier
of the Honan Province and all her air forces to move out.
Mbreover; there was no indication that the northern Chinése
situation might be mitigated; the Chinsse forces in North
China were strengthening preparations for war, such as con-

struction of their positions or transport of munitions, and

5l§2m£}1§§§1 firing was being repeated near the lMarco Polo

o el —-——ﬁ
- -

Bridge.
g S
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If the state of affairs had been left es it was, the

lives and properties of our residents in Peking and Tientsin
would surely have been forced to face unavoidable danger., '

Lhus the General Staff EQ's was compselled to adopt the fol-
M——“

lowing judgment of the situation:
#’__,L.ﬁ-—* o — —

"The authorities in Peking and Tientsin as well

as the Nanking Government; seem to be exerting themselves to
prevare for armed hostilities against Japan. As a result of
the aggravation of the situation, caused by the reinforce-

ment of Chinese troops in North GHina the lives and proper-

4;31 ties of our residents are, now, on the verge.of utmost dan-
1
./ﬁ'ger. It is high time for us now to dispatch a minimum

/ff’ possible number of forces to the Peking-Tientsin erea, in

order to protect our residents, A grave situation is arising

—

| @lso 1n areas other than Peking and Tientsin, which comes.
- to call our careful attention with regard to protection of

our nationals,.,"

I was informed of the above adoption by the report and
explanation of a high class officer of the_ﬁilitary Affairs

Section.

2 IV. Our government made the following point clear in an of-
/} ¢ ficial statement on 11 July, that we were utterly compelled
t‘“—.—r
to send forces to North China to cope with anti-Japanese
armed actions, nlenned by the Chinese side. But upon being
informed that the Hopei-Chahar Government authorities had
acceprted our proposal, we took steps, in the afternoon on -

the same day, as to reserve our prepration for the mobiliza-

tion and dispatch of our home divisions. Furthermore, orders

;?-‘#*' ™ - .

ey

T
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-
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were issued by the General Staff HQ's, with the approval

of the Government, to dispatch only a part of the Kwantung A -

— —— W e T ————

Army, in Manchuria, and?g{Lthe Chosen Army pgspeqti;gly.

—

Theflatféfmgegb was taken in view of the situation as men-
tioned above, to ensure the achievement of peace-time duty
by our garrison in China under aggravated situation in the

Feiping-Tientsin area.

¥ According to an information I got around 13 July from
e —————— e ———

the Chief of the m{;;LanxﬂA£ra;ns_Bussau,_th&_auLcoms of J

o

the Cabinet Conference was as follows:
‘.—__.m
"It is extremely doubtful whether the Nanking Government

_—

has the sincerity to settle the matter in neace. For the
Chinese Central Army forces are now advancing hastily to the

north and anti-Japanese actions and unlawful firing cases

are beihg repeated everywhere. Thus not only in North China

but also in Shanghei and Chingtao the situstion is very

dangerous in regard to the protection of the Yapancse resi-

dents there, Therefore, it will be advisable for us

in accordance with our firm policy of locelization, to pay

constant attention to the future course of things; urging

on the one hand, the Hopei-Chahar Government to fulfii the

.h"‘_."_- __‘_""-—-‘_‘___‘_-

stipulated terms, and abstaining on the other han&ﬁffbm.pro—

voking the Chinese,™

In conformity with this principle, the governing body
of the General Staff and of the War Ministry decided upon’ .

the so-called 'policy for the settlement of the North China

Incident' on the night of 13 July.
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The outline of the above 'policy' is as follows:
e S

"All possible measures should be taken to avoid the
expansion of the incident to an 2ll-out war, adhering éo the
orinciple of localization and settlment &t the spot. For
this purpose, it is desirable to accent the terms for scttle
ment proposed by the representative of the Chinese 29th Army
and signed on 1llth instant, and to see to it thet these terms
are fulfilled by the Chinese. Whether or not our forces now
in homeland should be mobilized is =a matter'to be decided in
the light of the future course of things. In case however
ti.e Chinese ignore the above terms and show no sincerity to
put it into prectice, or in case the Nanking Government re-

moves thelr central army forces to the north to prepere for

attack, rcsolute steps must bc taken on our part.”

It was that it is necessary for the garrisons stationin

in-China to receive beforehand the recognition of the central
headquarters, This was what Lieutenant-General ATOMIYA who
was the Chief of the Army Affairs Bureau participating in

sctting up the plan (regulation) reported directly to me,

VI. As 1 was connected with'mobilization, 1 wish to explein
the real circumstances under which mobilization and dispatch

were carried out with cautious attitude.

A, It wes a fact acknowle&géd by the government on July 9tii

w..e€n the incident broke out that the mobilizaetion and dis-

patch of divisions et home might be necessary to meet the

emergency circumstences, although it was not considercd

necessary et the beginning of the incident. (I knew this

through the Chief of the Army Affair Pureeu as & report from

the minister after a cebinet meeting.’)

=)
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B. Taking consideration of the dangerous state of Yapanese A
residents in the Peking-and Tientsin district, increasing
preparation of fighting pPOwWeEr and repeated attacks of Chinese 4.
forces in the same district; as well as the insincerity of

Hop;i _Chahar authorities in ne otiations of reconciliation

— 'H*-

-..—u_'

and the northwerd advancement of the Chine se centrel armies,

~ =% __—_’___\—/_—————‘—'_—_—’
the Japanese Government anE2EEEEE—EE-EE—EEEE_EEE_EiEEiEEEﬁ
R o — —

of troops to north China.

c. But in the afternoon of July 11th, as the Hopei-Chahar |

authorities accepted our proposal, the mobilization, end ,

dispatch of divisional troors &t home and other preparetions |

were discontinued. !

D, On 13 July 1t wes decided 8&s the policy of dealinz with &
the north China Incident that the mobilization of diviesions
et home would Dbe€ considered properly sccordinz to circum-

stances which might occur afterwards. |

E. As a new clircumstance which appcared up to 15 July 1

mention an increase and concentration of Chinese armies in

the area of the north Lancho-Haichow railway, the activity

of the Canton air fOIrcCES, the delay of actual withdrawal of
the Chinese Army forces from the left side along Yungtinho,

which withdrawal had been accepted by &an agreement. Not r ;

only that, further construction was continued and moreé army

forces were concentrated (a report irol the Generel Head- {

quarters). Considering the ebove report, it was decided at

e cabinét meeting that the carrying out of mobilization of

divisionel armies at home which had been discontinued on 16

n

¢

%

i

1 1

or 17 July should be prepared as 1o be practicable whenever W'i
. - -

e T == - - - — e e e e — — — - -
- P — — = —_— - — — - e = e T — - - -
e — e —— — o —— e -—— - - ————————
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3 necessary after 19 July. The officers and officials concernec
in the Generel Hesdquarters and the War Ministry proceeded
with preparations in their resvective sections, DBut the autl.-

orities decided to persevere as much as possible considering

self-defense, as the Hopei-Chahar suthorities accepted once
our proposals, in cpitec of the report that Chang-Kei-shek
revealed his firm detcrmination egainst Japan on 19 July.

Besides the accepntance of the Fopei-Chahar authorities, ex-

pecting the conclusions of the “enking Conference, the pre-

naration for mobilization of divisional armies at home was

postooned and rescrved for the future on 22 July. %

F. ATfter the Langfang incident on 25 July and the Kwamgan

- “'.-'_‘-_“‘

Gate Incident on 26 Jul the north China becanc
Bt ="

finally serious. A report wes received from & higher officer

\_’/

steting that the Japanese Government had decided upon a pro- |

gram on 27 July to mobilize and dispatch divisional armies I
at home., And the purpose of the mobilization and dispatch

was to eliminate the threat of the Chinese forces to tae |

.
e - -

lives and property of “apancse residents and trensportation o

- - i
- - e

and communication end also accomplishment of self-dcfense
of the elready dispetched garrison troops in north China,
The mobilizetion and dispatch &t first for the time being
w.re emergency operations with peace-time formetion and

equipment not suitable or sufficient for actual operetions.

- . -, & =
‘r‘-‘ - -

‘hese operations were only for the purpose of protecting the

- e — T —— . -

TNy

Japenese residents and to carry out the duty of self-defense,

— ¥ o o —

-
L

&
-y
— o

"
;'-v— -

G. "There was no definite cxpression of intention of the

- — - -
-
.-

|
authorities of the General Headquarters whether further mobi- 1 )
|

lization of divisional armies at home would be carried out

R |-
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or not in the future besi&es the above stateqd ones s =1 recog-

nized that the Minister, the Vice-Minister of the War Minis-

try and the Chief of the Military Affair Bureau who were the

highest stafrf authorities, maintained a pessive attitudgmin

regard to further mobilization,

H, Since then higher officers adopted the pPolicy of taking

broper steps in regard to further mobilization after considera-
tion and investigation of developments which might occur in

the future, When the Skenghal Incident broke out, two divi-

sions were sent to Cope with the emergency ang when it be-

at home was begun, As a8bove stated, patching and supplemen-

tary mobilization eng dispatch were carried out as circum-

stances required, nventu&lly after the outbreak of the¥;pci-
e — ————— b
dent up to October 1937, army forces totaling 15 divisions,

e e Sk lieg ki g

WETE mobllized and dispatched on eight different Occasions,

——“_‘__ _—_—h‘_—_—__mi

to say roughly A dlvisions in July! 7 dilvisions in August,

and h divisions 1n September and October,

— —_— T " -—\
o In 1938, prior to the execution of Operations in Hankao
. m——— i — S ——————————— —_*-“"“"--—'--..___

and Canton, the number of the divisions in China reached 23

E-Tabiy 4 Ay

.'.-
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VII. As examples of lack of unity ard non-planning of mili-
tary action, I wish to make mention of the capture of NANKING
overations in HSU-CHOW, capture of KUANGTUNG and operations

in HANKCW.

The following is neceszeiy confines of my dutlies as
announced by the General Suuff and other quarters,

1, Concerning the capture of NANKING, I was, 2t first,'in-'

formed bv the Chief of the military Affairs Bureau that the

General Staff had no intention to realize it and the War

Minister had the same opinion as the General Staff. I ap-
oroved of this. But because of the tendency of the tide of
war on the snmot and beceause of the desiré to selze the op-

nortunity of terminating this incident, the decision o

G rarmm——————

capture NANKINC wes firstly decidcd on Dedember 1, 1 the

jﬁﬁ,;“ fggh year of SHOWA) snd the order for the taking NANKING was
) MM
| Q?vn

|

- T ——— ——

—1s8sued.

_‘ﬂ

-

2 Cerrying out of the HSU-CHOW operations,

Tn May 1938 (the 13th year of SHOWA ), an agreement of
views between tne War kinister and Vice-Chief of the General
Steff was not reached urtil imnedistely before the decision
to carry out opercstions was made. The point at issue wes |

thet if it was possible to preserve the contact between north
China and central China by securing permanently the important
area of HSU-CHOW after the occunation of this ares and to sur- f
ply needed army strength because of the necessity to increasc

by 2 or 3 divisions the strength necessary for securing the

important area of HSU-CHCW, but the fundamental fact was the
disagreement of views as to the anticination of settling this

sncident in sccordence with the policy of non-expansion,

|
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Finally, agreement of views to carry out this military
operation was arrived at due to strategié demand in the light
of the entire situetion. Fart of it, I personally heard &%
the above-mentioned conference and the rest 1 learned from my

superiors,

3. As to the HANKOW and KUANGTULG operations,decision was

not made so quickly. Only in September 1938 it was decided

i ——————————— I —

to carry out the HANKOW operation about October 1938 and

W

capture KUANGTUNG about that time to cut the communication

- — — —

and supply routeﬂfrom:gbféad: 3

——

L. Under these circumstances, the army budget passed nt

the ordinary session of the Diet in 1938 had not anticipated
theses military overations. Therefore a great deal of incon-
venience was felt in the matter of expenses for the year as

explained in the following:

VIII. I, as one of the men who Were connected with the

military budget, wish to state as follows; by way of propos-

ing meteriels to indicate that the operations in HSUCHOW,

HANKOW and KWANTUNG were not planned well before they actually

occurred. After sbout Yctober 1937, in TOKYO, prospects were ‘
entertained for putting an end to the positive operations j

ageinst China and, moreover, plens and preparations were pro-

moted regerding the adjustment of and extraction from the
military strength in Chine, on the premise that the lncident e

would be concluded in the near future. TO explain more in

detail, at about the eanEEﬂLQEZJ our military strength in

— I — W T, =
N

Chine consisted of 16 divisions, forming its main part. As
-

the first step, these were to be reduced to about 10 divisions.

= 15" -
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Following this, in the units, which were to 'remain in China,
the reservists were to be relieved from sctive service. The
enforcement of this program was first to be started from the
early spring of 1938, and, pursuant to the anticipated es-
tablishment of peace; an all-round withdrawal of the armed
forces was planned. With respect to this matter, both the

department cuarters and the out-post army authorities were

ananimous in their opinion.

Accordingly, the budget, agreed upon at the ordinary

session of the Diet at that time, was also based on the above;

namely, it wes made on the premise that (1) the military

el T N T
strength in China was to be reduced roughly by half; (2) the

i i

s —

repatristion of those troors who had been inducted; (3) the

—— I— S e i T ————at

—— _-'"———-——-—--.F'-'__r.

Egﬁfinued stationing of armed forces to such &n extent as to

= I ..—--— - -

presuppose no vositive operatlions.

But, as it was, the situation did not favorably develop
the feilure of pesce negotietions and

as was expected, and after the occupation of NANKING, Ahe
consequent operations in HSUCHOW, HANKOW and.KﬂANTUNG neces-

sitated the total abandonment of the attempted adjustment

of the military strength as aforementioned, not only this but

in the 193€-1939 fiscal year an enormous deficiency was found

in the budgset.

\

IX. I wish to submit the following materials about how the
military budget was actually prepared, About the expenditures
of our expeditionsry forces which were sent to Korea and
Manchuria on July 11, 1937, 1 was asked by my superiors in the

War ministry to negotiate with the Finence kinistry with a

I e

1]
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i view to meet current expenses with a reserve fund and to open

'-'—il-l—-—__-____‘

akthree months " budéet covering August, September and Yctober

f
4 for the troops that had already been sent, including their

evacuation expenditures and supposing their stay to be about

three months. But in fact, after 'ncgotiation with the Financ
Ministry it was reduced to two months., A budget for two
months of August and September was presented at en extraor-

Ginary session of the Diet in July and passed. A budget for

four months from October till Jenuary of the next year for r

about 11 divisions already mobilized by the end of Angust, 1

passed at a session convened 2t the beginning of Sertember,

Thus budgets were prepared little by little according to -

the number of the expeditionary forces, instead of meking &

wholesale estimetion for a lonz period in expectetion of ag- y

cravetion end orotraction of the “ncident. This is also clea:  ;

.

by the fact that the budget for the fiscal yeer of 1938 proved

greatly deficient as hereinbefore stated. .

X, Healization of Jepan's policy of non-aggravation. ;1‘

1. What I have elready stated shows efforts to realize a

policy of non-aggravaticn,

B Ls a reference to strict execution of non-aggravetion

policy on the spvot, I wish to mention a verbal report made , P

e e ————— e —
8: the luinister of War, in my hearing, by Lt. Col! “:Acy, a
& = e - .
staff officer of the expeditionery forces in China, who had 18
been called up to the central govermment to meke a report of 3

the situstion developing on the spot.

L3
Its gist is as follows:
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The policy of non-aggravation oend peaceful settlement

ent was thoroughly jdisseminated to th

Jananese fOTCES in North China and

e commanders

/ of the Incid

and all the rest of the

atmost care was being taken for it. Lor instance, the trans-

portation of &any Jananese troops was prohibited'by the rail-

way between Peking and Tiensin. Any Japanese soldier in uni-

way between

form was also nrohibited to make use of the rail

rengtai and Peking.

And thouzh all the Jepanese who passed through the gate

of the Peking Castle WeEre€ examined and interrogated by the

The'y submitted to 1t.

Chinese military police€.
sed by the military

Every castle gate€ in Peking was clo

force of the Chinese 37¢h Divislon, Chinese machine guns WEIE

turned upon the Japaneée houses within Peking Gastlé,'and 6,000

nese were guarded by only two Japanese infaniry platoons.

f being in & position enabling us to

Japa

In spite O

action immediately against any Chinese bombardment, W6 WETE

rating upon the instructions of the Army headguarters in

OpE

g came to us one by one. Being afraid of

we refrained from carrying the

Tientsin as the

aggravating the situation,

wounded into Peking castle to be operated upon; likewise WE

s of the dead as they were, etc. This was but

localization to prohiblt actions

1eft the bodie

an example of our policy of

which might provokea magnification of the incident. Thus to

carry out this pdlicy, we submitted to any humiliation or

1

inconvenience.

As for the Chinese fOIrcCeEsS, anti-Japanese sentiment was

cers and soldiers alike, and especially among

nd major. The chinese in the

high among offi

those in the grade of seco

Pintsin Area WeETE convinced that the Chinese 29th Army had

won at Marco Polo Bridge, that the Chinese losses WETE small

s 18le

,...
(
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and that the Japanese Arny had compIetaly'withdrawn.,fi 1 ﬁﬂ_

We endured the rising anti-Japanese sentiment._#///// j&
In addition, it was said that the Centrel Operations

Staff had advanced to Paoting.
33 Concerning the strict observance of the localization

policy of the local Army Commander, I will state what

General Terauchi, the Army Coumander in the North China

J—‘—*‘ﬂﬂ_——#__

a;eaj told me when I was there about October 1937 (Showa
12), for liaison work.

That was as follows:

Hitherto the Central Suﬁreme Command has made the-
technique of lecading actual operations difficult by not
clearly showing beforchand the gegeral purpose of opera-
tions and the points of operation. Instead they have
simply given the purpose and time of each local operation
(such as the Central Hopei operation and the Taiyuan
operation), To faciliﬁate operations the Supreme Command
should clearly show the general scope and purpose of the
operations as a whole and leave the details of looal

operations to the Arumy Commander at the front, However,

_

this case being merely an "incident™ and having no bearing

.

on our general national pélicy, it is necéégéfjwfoiéacri-

I e —
—— - —

fice perfection in technique to the preservation of our

— D “‘.‘_—im‘

e — |y

gencral localization policy, In the future, it will be

: meESE— — . ——— i ———
necessary for both the central ancd local commands seriouslsy

to consider various technical methods which would relieve
the disadvantsge to actual operation, brought about by
strict observation of the localization policy. '

b On the policy of localization in the Pingtsin Area
in July 1937 (Showa 12) it ‘was decided that the occurrance
of the Langfang and Kwangan Gate Incidents; together with
the lack of sincerity on the part of the Hopei-Charhar

authorities to fulfill the terms of agreecment as well as

i 19N
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made it at last necessary to mobilize our dividions now

in the homeland.
on the night of July 26, the General staff gave ne & |

__’p—ﬂ—"'_—
"Hithbrto we have avoided the mobllization of the

S
home diviaiqns but - ion in China admits of

no fﬁrther delay n  Even the

f the General Staff, who was O
ces for fear of con-

notice:

partment o ¢ of the strongest

opponents to the mobilization of for

f1ict between Japan and China, at last admitted on the

necessity of mobilization by way of sclf-dcfense.,

26th the
On the 27th the governing body of the Viar Ministry
also recognized the .unavoidability of mobilization.
¢ Cablinet

t was prepared for adoption by th

Then a draf
bilization of three home divi-

conference concerning the mo

and the War Minlster 1gsued orders in the evening

of the same day with the approval of the Cabinet conference

home divisilons.

about the mobilization of thXree€
T was inforned

a meeting of the Eureau Chiefs,

After
by the Chief of the'Military Affairs Burcau that on the
* decided as follaws:

27th of July the government had

To mobilize three home divisionsy to Laintain the

= e R

d settlement at the spot evel in

policy of 1ocalizatlon an
cctive battle in the

e of the outbreak of a self-prot
ch a battle should be purely

cas
for the

Pingtsin Area, SU
schievenent of the piasohbine duvies of the conrrander of

to do its best not to bring

the Japanese ATmy in Chinaj
ldiers

about & situation which might require€ despatching SO

to Tsingteo and Shanghai for thc protection of Japanese

s -- though such a situation may eventually conec

resident

about; and to do no demage to the personnel of third

PoOweTrSe

3
4
5
W3
;
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Besides I learned that the Minister gave an explanatio:

r'_-l-l—-—__.

at the said meeting of the Bureau Chiefs to the following

effect:

Exercise of military force in Pingtsin Area which
might be required in the future would be purely self-
defensive action and as such it would never be contradicto:
to the policy of localization adhered to by Japan., And
even 1f despatch of forces to Shanghai or Tsingtao should
be reauired for the protection of the Japenese whose securi
was being seriously ienaced st that time; it would never
run counter to the policy of localization, And the actions
Oof the Japanese forces had hitherto been in strict con-
;ormity with the localization of military movements, and

could and should remain so in the future as well,

I also learned from s docurient that the mobilization
WMM

of home divisions was ordered in the'evening of the 27th,

and the Chief of the General Staff approved the application

of the Commander of the Japanese Army in China for taking 1

military'action ageinst the Chinese 29th Army, and that at

the same time he ordered that the actual shooting be limitec

to the line of the Yungting River. »
i e s

>+ I wes inforrmed by the Chief of the Military Affairs |
Bureau that at the Five Ministers!' Meeting held about the

J 20th of July, theéy debated upon the advisability of the
;’J"‘ M :
:

Jepanese policy to improve the situation by taking mesns to

-

V

clarify our observance of the principle of equal opportunity ‘ |
in North China, in order to satisfy the Western I'owers, as “'
well as China herself; and upon the plan tc withdraw the

forces at that time in the Pingtsin area, which had been

despatched there from Manchuria and/ggigi the settlement of f
the Marco Polo Bridge Incident, and then to take diplomatic |
means for the solution of questions pending between Jepan

and China. The Five NMinisters' Meeting was a conferepce e
————— g
.

ek 3
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held at the time by the Prine Minister, Forcign Hinig&cr;
N
‘War Ninister Favy Minister, and the Finance Linisger.

I also heard dircctly that at the end of July, there was

an opinion among the governing body of the General Staff

that contemplated neutralizi.g the situation by gathericg

and moving all thc Japanese forces in North China back to

]
[
|
#i
A
l‘.
f
}

?' | the arca of Tientsin in order to bring about prompt settle-
f ment of the incident, and them to hold a personal interview
1 betwecen Konoye and Chiang Kal-shek, and thus to smooth out
B the difficulty between Japan and China, However, since

g: the attitude on the part of the Chinese-was—against_this

pfcn;'it was not realized after all,
6. - Circunstances after the Oyama Incidect at Shanghal:

ot
About the Incident Captain Oyama, I received a report

on the morning of the 10th of August 1932 in the War Minis-

try from Hoshina, the Chief of the First Section of the

Navy Ministry., It purported that the Japanese authorities
in Shanghal would not take further steps until they were

assured of the sincerity of the Chinecse by negotiating
with them, and that the circumstances might require pre-

parations for despatch of troops.

On that day the government authorities seemed to be

of the opinion that adequate measures for the protection

of our residents in Shanghai should be taken after the
real circumstances of the Oyama Incident came to light,
but that it would be worth while to study the Navy Minis-
ter's proposal dcmanding preparations for eventual mobili-
zation as a last resort, But I learned latcr that on the
13th, the Csbinet conference took up a plan to despatch

‘-—-—ﬂ-—_-h‘,,__n——-- st
forces, and that on the l1l4th this plan was beinb subjecte i

— ™ ———T

T e — -
— ———

to re-considcratlon. Then a statement was rade by the

Imperial Government on August 15, In accordance with thir
 —————————— “M-—_—_‘\
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to Shanghai of which two_divisio
the nein body, for the DUTPOSE of protecting the Jap

subjects in Shanghal.

operations thoroughly. The noD1I11Z!

_M-_

wes ordered on Atvgust 15.
M

the Cabinet con

being caln,
provided that nothing happened O gistux

measure would be taken for the protection

t. it was decided to despatch a tdespatched force'

staterent,

ns from the houeland formed

anese

The word 'decpatched force' was

,—"-—_—-—-*—-#
gh pure military

used to show that it hac pothing to GC W2
.___._'_*_..—-———-—'——_-"—'__--—-l'-I VO —— = ———————————————

21,ion for this poerpose

As  for Tsingtao, I heard that 1T was $aelked about at

ference that the situation in Tsingtao
it would be possible toO maintein the status Quo,
b it, but sone

of residents

there in case the worst should happen.
CW of
beginning ovérfal;_@;;iggzg_operations. This conclusion

fﬂfaﬁﬂ_ﬂ,,ﬁ
was based on t

he report tnat the Chinese had esteblished

headquarters on.August 15th, made Chiang Kai=shek Supreme

seg ana air forces and divided

the whole country 1

Hopei-Chahar;. the 2nd, Chehar-Shansi; the 3rd, Shanghai,

the Lth, South China), and that general mobilization was

ordered on the same day.
About the 16th or 17th of August, 1 was duly notified

at the meeting of the Bureau Chiefs as usual that the

following has been jecided at the Cabinet conference:

"It 1s becoming difficult to SO solve the affair in

T g -_l—\_-l-m iy, Wi —

ty with the policy of locallvation, as the

strict conformi
S ‘#-Lm-‘—m“—_-ﬁ_"_-mm

\__. = R A — —

Chinese have determined tO carly out a long war.

the utmost efforts should be made to restrict the war to

the minimum in point of time as well as strategically, and

territorially.

% i : 3
b ¥ Sl Bk L ML »

- - L e T R i ————. i-ﬂ: :M-ﬂ

Therefore,
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As the original object of the Shanghail operations lay

Chiefly in the protection of the Japanese residents, they
had to be confined to a mininum, To check the danger of
creating a general clash between Japan and China on the one
hand, and to avoid trouble with other countries on the
other, Japan at first despatched less than two divisions
terxporarily with the idea of carrying out the operations

with mininum forces, Neverthelees the difrerence of forces

e —

-

lﬂf-——l—"--______ i

R e
between Japan and China was so great that the war situation

= o O —— e

hﬁi?a did not take a favorable turn,aa_igwyas expected. The

central Supremne Command thcrsfore, despatched first five

o o TR W i T ——— - a

é}x the beginniqg of November, and then five more divisions

battalions during the perlod from the und of Segtember

N, W g T gt ¢ gt L T —
R R e ]

“from North Chinaj; in addition, the beginning of November
™ - . R T el sk S S N L

three divisions landed at Hangchow and again in twhe middle
P L > gunas W

of that month one division at Paimaokiang. By

g ——— —

supplving forces temporarily as stated above, the battle

west. Thus the operations which were executed to protect
the residents in Shanghai were brought to e conclusion,
Rut the fact that Jepan was obliged to use forces in such
a way as was considered to be an error from a viewpoint é
of strategy shows the circumstance under which Japan was

curbed by her own poliecy of localizing the Incident. In

wards appointed Coruwrander of the North China Expeditionary

fact, General Sugiyama, ex-Minister of War, who was after- 3
5
Army, pointed out these circumstances, saylng that the delay 1
in occupying Shanghal was an inportant cause that prblonged ‘
the Incidcnt, but the fundemental cause lay in the numeri- :
cel shortage in military forces and amount of naterials,
so the Japanese policy of solving the Incident in a short

time should have been carried out l0Te€ thoroughly. The

. - 2k - ti
J.!
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vaneral told me so personally when I made a business trip
= t~ {Tarth China in the winter of 1938 (Showa 12). EHe vas
then the Commander of the North China Lxpeditionary ATLY-
The headquarters of the Shanghal Expeditionary Forer

Central

was reorganized into the headquarters of the/China Expedl

tionary Force, and at the same time wes entrusted with th

duty of operating in $he viecinity of Ghanghel with the alil

of creating an opporiunLLlY o s:ttls the Incident. This

meant that the authorities vi-uLed 10 find an opportunity

of settling the Inciaent in the operasiots nsar Shenghail,

i'JJ“‘-‘-f-

and had no intentldon of capturing Nanking et that time, ﬂ
i

After the tahtitic neafr Shenghal the central Authorities of |

the Supg=ne Command instructed our forces not to advance

beyond the 1line of Changshu~Saochow~Kashing so as not to

give an unnecessaly prcvocatlion to Nanking. ZLater 1 |

that confidentisl instructions hed

learned frorm docurents

been given to the forges aras the theatre of

operations furthar wesv +4yan Wusih and Fuchow. ‘
\

Be In our couniiy tae ImpﬁrialmHgadquariﬂxsEOrdinance J

wes cnacted on November 17, 1537, ana the Tmperial Head-

quarters was esteblished in Tokyo £5r the first time on

November 20 of the sari€ year,

Tn the same month the munitions nobilization prograi

was begun., However, the order for the national general

mobilization had nov yetﬁbeen put into force (T.N. in that X
r)

year ).
A

The Genereal Mobilization Law was prorulgated in Marc! |

of the following year, that 18, 1938, But it was in May )
) |

1938 that a part of the law was epplied for the China

Incident.

Vith this 1 bring‘my sffidavit to an end.
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Translation Certificete

I, aArthur 4. wiseki, of the Dercnse Langua: - Branch, * : :

hereby certify that the roregoing urinslation aescribed in the
attached certificate is, 0 the Lest oI ny kaowled,;& and bellief,
a correct transletion end is as near as poscible to the necniing

of the original docunent.

/S/ Arthur . idlsaki

Tokyo, Japan

Date 14 April 1947
\———-—_‘__'_.—-——"‘
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23 April 1947

Ret TANAKA, Shinichi
Def. Doce. #925

I. In General
(a) The affidavit is argumentative.

(b) The witness purports to state the contents of
of ficial documents and to give information
which he secured from documents,as to which
the documents themselves are the best evidence,
and he does not account for the absence of
the documents or the inability of the defense
to produce them.

Il. SPECitio

(a) In Section III, 1, the witness purports to
quote an e xplanation issued by the General
Staff. This is objectionable on two grounds,=

(1) It is anattempt to introduce a |
document without complying with the
usual rules, and

(2) The official s tatement gshould be
produced or the inability to pro=
duce it accounted fore.

(b) In Section IV, 1, the witness gives as the
source of his in}omtion, “This I know from
documents," without giving the nature of the
documents or giving any reasons why the docu=
ments should not be produced. The last two
sentences of this sub-section purport to be
third=hand hearsay concerning the establish-
ment of the policy of non-enlargement by the
Imperial Government.

(C) In Section IV 2’ the witness r001t.3’ We @14 .
which I know I‘ron documents.” This is objec-
tionable for the reasons recited in item II (a)
above. In the last three paragraphs of this
sub-section (page 8), the witness purports to
quote a "judgment of the situation" adopted
by the General Staff Headquarters, as to which
he had second-hand information. his is subject
to the additional objection set out in item

Il (&) above.
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Pl‘. 2e

(d)

(e)

(1)

(g)

(h)

In Section IV, pages 8 and 9, the witness
purports to summarize an orflcial statement

of the Government issued 11 July. This is
objectionable on the two grounds set out in
item II (a) above and on the additional ground
that it is doubtless the same statement as

already in eridence as Exhibit No. 260 R
in the Prosecution's case. ;

In Section V, page 9, the witness testifies
to the decision of a éabinot conference on
second~hand information without complying with
the rule on the produetion of the record or
accounting for the inability of the Defense to
produce it., The same objection applies to the
so-called "Policy for the settlement of the
North China Incident" (Pages 9 and 10), adopted
by the Governing Board of the General Staff and
of the War Ministry. This applies to the last
parag{aph °n page 9 and the first paragraph on
page 10,

Section VI, A, seeks to introduce third~hand
evidence of the action taken at a Cabimet meeting.

In Section VI, E, page 11, the witness purports
to give the decision of a Cabinet meeting which
1s objectionable for the reasons above stated,

In Section VI, F, the witness recites the in-
rormation.con{ainsd in "a report received from
a higher official,” -
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TANAKA, Shinichi
Defs Doce. ms

JDI1e LONS R0 Lhe ilhntroduciion ¢ 118 J LC
In General

(a) The affidavit is argumentative.

(b) The witness purports to state the contents of
of ficial documents and to give information
which he secured from documents,as to which
the documents themselves are the best evidence,
and he does not account for the absence of
the documents or the inability of the defense
to produce them,

Specifie

(a) In Section III, 1, the witness purports to
quote an e xplanation issued by the General
Staff. This is objectionable on two grounds,=-

(1) It is an attempt to introduce a
document without complying with the
usual rules, and

(2) The official s tatement should be
produced or the inability to pro=-
duce it accounted for.

(b) In Section IV, 1, the witness gives as the
source of his inf‘omtion, "This I know from
documents," without givingz the nature of the
documents or giving any reasons why the docu-
ments should not be produced.s The last two
sentences of this sub-section purport to be
third-hand hearsay concerning the establishe
ment of the policy of non-enlargement by the
Imperial Government.

(¢) In Section IV, 2, the witness recites, ", . .
which I know }ron documents." This is objec=-
tionable for the reasons recited in item II (a)
above. In the last three paragraphs of this
sub-gsection (page 8), the witness purports to
quote a "Judgment of the situation" adopted
by the General Staff Headquarters, as to which
he had second-hand informatiom., This is subject

to the additional objection set out in item
Il (&) above.
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(d) 1In Section IV, pages 8 and 91 the witness

(e)

(£)

(g)

(h)

purports to summarize an official statement
of the Government issued 11 July., This is
objectionable on the two grounds set out in

that it is doubtless the same statement as

already in eridence as Exhibit No. 260 R
in the Prosecution's case. i ;

In Section V, page 9, the witness testifies
to the decision of a éahinat conference on
second-hand information without complying with
the rule on the production of the record or
accounting for the inability of the Defense to
procduce ite The same objection applies to the
so=called "Policy for the settlement of the
North China Incident" (Pages 9 and 10), adopted
by the Governing Board of the Ceneral ﬁtafr and
of the War Ministry. This applies to the last
paragraph on page 9 and the first paragraph on
page 1C,

Section VI, A, seesks to introduce third-hand
evidence o tﬁe action taken at a Cabinet meeting,

In Section VI, E, page 11, the witness purports
to give the docislon of a Cabinet meeting which
is objectionable for the reasons above stated,

InESection.VI Fy the witness recites the in-
rormatinn.conlainad in "a report received from
a higher official,"
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23 April 1947

MEMORANDUM TO3 Mr, Nelson Sutton
FROM: Mr, J, F. English

An examination of the deposition of TANAKA, Shinichi
shows that certain matters therein might refer to deeisions
of the Cabinet, Liaison Meetings or Five Ministers Confer-
ences, These matters occurred between July 8 and July 27,
19373 the middle of August, 19371 December 1, 1937 and some
date, not stated, in September, 1938,

An examination of the record shows that there are in
evidence references to two Cabinet meetings as being held in
1937 « 11 July and 22 October,

Exhibit 260 refers to the meeting of 11 July 1637, It
is the cross-examination of CHING TEH-CHUN during which he
stated that the Japanese Cabinet under KONOYE on 11 July
1937 passed a resolution to send a biggdr Army to North
ghinn. (2455) Th s agrees with TANAKA's statement on page

1-B,

Exhibit 239 refers to a Cabinet meeting of 22 October
1937 (2960), At this meeting the Cabinet decided to form a
more powerful national political company to establish and
develop heavy industry in Manchukuo, The Affidavit of TANAKA
rakes no reference to such a matter,

No exhibit relating to a Privy Council meeting refers to
any matter discussed in TANAKA's Affidavit during 1937 or 1938,

TANAKA's Affidavit is confined to happenings within the
vears 1937 and 1938, The record shows that there was a Four
Minigters Conference held on 16 April 1937 (Ex, 219, Record p.
2748) and a Five NMinisters Conference on 20 February 1937
(Ex, 218, Record p, 274%-2747), TANAKA's Affidavit refers to
Five linlstors Conference of 20 July 1937.

Conclusion: Consequently, there is in evidence no record
of :ny;:eeting or conference mentioned by TANAKA in this
Affidavit,
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GENERAL HEADQUARTERS
SUPREME COMMANDER FOR THE ALLIED POWERS
INTERNATIONAL PROSECUTION SECTION

. 23 April 1947
EEMORANDUN

T0 t Maj. General A. N. Vaslilyev
FROM t D. Ne. Sutton

SUBJECT: TANAKA, Shinichi
Def, Doc. ms

Ur., Tavenner is considering not cross examining
the witness Tanaka, Shinichi and in view of the state=-
ment made by the Court this morning if we determine
not to cross examine we will draw the Court's attention
to the evidence introduced by the Prosecution which
gives our view or our position on the points testified
to by the witness, reciting the name of the witness -
who testified for the Prosecution and the place where
his evidence appears in the record or the number of the
exhibit in the event we introduced a document on that
subject.

Would you kindly ascertain and let me know as mmptly

as you can whether there was introduced in the Russ
Phase of the case any specific evidence which is contra-
dictory to or which bears on the statements made by the
witness Tanaka with reference to the USSR, particularly
with regard to the statements in Sectlon iII of the

Affidavit,

D. N. SUITON,
Assistant Counsel

B e T
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GENERAE HEADQUARTERS
SUPREME COMMANDER FOR THE ALLIED POWERS
INTERNATIONAL PROSECUTION SECTION

17 April 1947

MEMORANDUM FOR: Mr., Dunigan
FROM : Mr. Lopez
SUBJECT ¢ Defense Document 925 Sworn-Deposition
of Shinichi TANAKA
T A bt S S e

l., You will be interested to know that TANAKA,
Shinichi, was a prosecution witness during the MUTO Phase.
His testimony appears on pp. 16,140-16,174 of the Rocord.

M

Pedro Lopez
Associate Prosecutor

cecs Mr. Sllttoi
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Completed

Information in the hands of the Tnvesti-
gation Division.

Statement in avnlication for subpoena as
to subject of witness's testimony.

Examination of case file, 1f any.

Crnss-reforence file on case files in
sffice of Investigation Division.

Cross-reference card file hy subject
matter of evidentiary dccuments in
Document Division.

Reference in evidence to witness or to
the subiect matter of his testimony.

Preparation of summary of testimony
already given hy witness.

Memorandum nrerared by ir. Lonez, dated

farch 11, 1947, relating to decorations

averded to defendants and their witnesses.

Statenent of any othar investigation
conducted by you.
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Permanent Domieilet -
Present adiress!-
Dec. -28%h, 1915:

Dee, 27th, 1923%

Aog 7th, 19251

Dee¢, 7th 19361
Jan, 13%h,1927:
Har, 24th, 19281

hug. lat, 1920
Aug. let, 19801
Llug, 29th, 19311

Fadb. 2nd, 19328

Fed. 10th, 1932

Aug. 8%h, 19333

March 5th, 1934t

March 15th, 1938:

Fersonal History of Semiohi TAZARA
¥o. 2001 Daishoin-Mara, Nu-gun, Fhime Prefecture

SENIORI TAZAXKA--Born in Nov. Bth 1892

Appointed Second-Lieutenant, Transport Corps, attached
on same date to No, 2 Commiseariat Battalion

Promoted to Firsd-lieutenant, Transport Corps.
Ordered to enter the Army General Staff College

Promoted 1o Captain, Treasport, relieved om the ssme date
of his post and attached to Fo, 2 Commiseariat Patialiom.

Left the Army General Staff College.

Appointed Company Commander of ¥o, 2 Commimsariat Battalion.
Attached to Company of Ho. 2 Commismariat Battalion

and ordered on scme dste to serve with the Inspectorate
General of Nilitary Training.

Appointed Instruector of the Nilitary Academy.

Promoted to Major, Tranmsport Corps. '

Appointed concurrently as Instruector of the Army Intendance
Sechool. | .

Iasued emergency mobilisation order and sppointed staff
of ficer of the 9th Depot Division,

Relieved of his concurrent post 2z« Inetructor of the MHilitary

Intendance 3chool.

Appointed staff officer of the 9th Divizion, and engaged himsel
in Manchuria Incident duties at the 9th Divieion Headguartere

from Yeb. 6th to June 10%h.

Appointed Inetructor of Strategy at the Army Ceneral Staff
cﬂllm-

Promoted to Lt-Colonel, Traneport Corps.




Aug. 2nd, 1937
Aug. 4%h, 1937t
Aug. 24th, 19371
Fed. lst, 1938!
July 15th, 19381
Hay 15§h. 193914

iug. 14th, 1938t

Aug. let, 1940
Nec. 9th, 19401

dar. 1lst, 189411

Apr. 24th, 19411

Apr. 28th, 19411

July 1st, 1942

Hay 16th, 19441

R

Appointed Instructor of the Military Automodile School
and concurrently member of the Laboratory of the same school.
fesued mobilization order on July 27%h.

Appointed staff officer of ¥o. 1 lLine of Communications and

completed the orggnisation on the same dete (despateh for
Yorth China),

Isesued mobilization order and completed the organisation
on Sept. 1st. (despateh for Forth Chins)
Appointed Staff Officer of ¥o. 2 Army Corps.

rromoted to Colonel, Transport Corpe and attachad to the
M{1itary Automobile Schoel (&ue $o his holding the post of
Staff Officer of Yo, 2 Army Corps)

Appointed Instructor of Strategy et the Army Ceneral Staff
College.

Left Shanghai port Aug. 12th and lended at Nagasaki Aug, 13%h.

Pelieved of his main post and completed the organization
May 27th. Appointed on the same date as Commander of the
4th Motor Transport Regiment.

himself in Chine Incident duties atb the Army
Geners)l Staff College.

Appointed member of the Commissariat Inspection Buresau.
Attached to the Commissariat Inspection Buream.

Promoted to Major-Oemeral, snd sppointed Chief of Staff of
the Sth Army Corps.

Left Shimonoseki and paszed the frontier at Antung on the 25th.

Arrived (1) at Mutanchiang Province and completed the
organization Aug. 26th.

Appointed Chief of Btaff of the Kvantung Defence Corpe.

Appointed Inspector of Line of Oommanications of the
gnd Area Army.
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4 June 1947

¢ Nr. Biward P. Nomaghan, Ohief, Investigative Division, IFS.

2
FROK : lester 0. Dunigan.
SURJECT: TANAKA, Shintchi.
Case #235 relates to the above-named individmal although
the first name in that file is spelled "SHIZUIGHY."

TARAKA was interrogated om 10 June 1946, and a copy of
the interrogation is #20

« and a copy
although it dears mo serial
musber is between #38 and #39. of the same interrogation as
is sontained in Gase $448, » Sppears in the file of the
defendant NUTO, which is Gase #3519. Nome of these interrogations
appear in TANAKA's file, Case $235.

It is suggested that copies of these interrogations de
placed in the file pe to TANAXA or a memorandum setting
forth vhere such interrogations may be found be placed in TANAEA's
file, Case #2385.

Gopy to: Nr. David N. Sutten

LCD/nb
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29 May 1947

T0 : ¥y, David N, Sutton
FROM lester 0. Dunigan
SUBJECT: TANAKA, Shinichi.

Reference is here made to my memoranium dated 17 April 1947

- concerning the above named individual.

This person appeared as a Prosecution vitness and his
testimony is contained in pages 16,140 - 16,174 of the Record.

He was also called as a witness for the Defense and
was cross-examined by Mr. Tavenmer starting at page 20,705 of the
Record.

He has now submitted g new affidavit dealing with
matters pertaining to the Soviet Uniton. In this connection, there
is in File #459, Serial #16, sn interrogation of TANAXA by the
Rassian Division. The sudject matter of that interrogation would have
bearing upon the contents of his new affidavit.

His prior testimony mentioned adove related primarily
to the China Incident. I have examimed it and compared it with the
contents of the present affidavi$ and find no metters therein which
vould dbe of value in crois-sxamination.
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Def. Doc. #1077-5 Exh, No,

Translated by
Defense language Branch

ERRATA SHEET
T

-

The following correction should be made on this documents

— -

page l. - Line 4 from bottom,

"Feace r‘e‘h;tration o

-
~ should read Y
3 "Race restrotion®

L s s W




